0NN kW

(OSSN NS T NS T NG T NG I NG I NG I NG T NG T N0 T N S S e e e T O T S =
— O 0 0 NN N kA WD~ OOV AW~ OO

32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

Stratham Planning Board Meeting Minutes
November 16, 2022
Stratham Municipal Center
Time: 7:00 pm

Members Present: Thomas House, Chair (arrived 7:15 pm)

David Canada, Vice Chair

Mike Houghton, Select Board’s Representative
Chris Zaremba, Regular Member

John Kunowski, Alternate Member

Members Absent:  Pamela Hollasch, Regular Member

Staff Present: Mark Connors, Town Planner

1.

Call to Order/Roll Call

Mr. Canada called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm and took roll call.

Approval of Minutes

a.

November 2, 2022

Mr. Zaremba made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from November 2, 2022. Mr.
Houghton seconded the motion. All voted in favor. Mr. Canada appointed Mr. Kunowski as a
voting member for the meeting.

Old Business:

a. Andrew and Eileen Maderios (Owners) - Request for approval of a conditional use permit to allow

the installation of a small ground mounted solar array at 190 Winnicutt Road (Tax Map 11, Lot
22), Zoned Residential Agricultural. Owner/Applicant’s representative is ReVision Energy, 7
Commercial Drive, Brentwood, NH 03833.

Ms. Maderios described a proposed landscaping plan. The plan was revised today based on
comments from the abutter at 188 Winnicutt Road (Viano). The revised plan includes two
additional trees, specifies Green Giant Arborvitae as the selected species at the request of the
Vianos, increased the junipers along Winnicutt Road, and added holly or rhododendron on the side
for screening to 1 Charles Drive.

Ms. Maderios provided photographs and addressed the comments submitted by the abutter at 1
Charles Drive (McManus). Additionally the revised plan incorporates all of Mr. Viano’s requests.

Page 1 of 7



45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

Mr. Houghton asked for clarification on the term “or similar” on the plan. Ms. Maderios explained
that the landscaper questioned the spread of the Green Giant Arborvitae. They can grow to 10 feet
in diameter and with how close they are requested they may not fit right next to each other so
another variety might provide the equivalent coverage but not grow as wide.

Mr. Zaremba also has concerns with the term “or similar” and asked for more clarification. For
example, can they not plant three Green Giant Arborvitaes? Ms. Maderios explained that the
landscaper has them plotted but she needs to double check the spacing when they go into the
ground. On the plan, the location of the first and third ones is fine, but the landscaper needs to
confirm at the time of planting that the one in the middle has room to spread and the root systems
will not cross. Mr. Zaremba asked if they could be staggered. Ms. Maderios confirmed and added
that the “or similar” language came from the draft motion. Mr. Connors stated the language in the
draft motion is “a closely comparable fast-growing species”. The board discussed and determined
that any deviations from the plan need to be approved by the Town Planner.

Mr. Canada asked if the approval needs to state that the plantings must be maintained properly.
Mr. Connors stated that he does not believe so and that the regulations cover that. Mr. Connors
noted the proposed second condition that existing mature landscaping along Winnicutt Road and
along the property boundary with 188 Winnicutt Road will not be removed or cleared so long as
the solar array is located on the property and asked if Ms. Maderios is okay with that condition.
Ms. Maderios confirmed.

Heather Iworsky from ReVision Energy commented that the proposed landscaping will not impede
with the solar energy system or with any safety, so ReVision approves the plan.

Peter Viano, the abutter at 188 Winnicutt Road asked what size arborvitaes are proposed and if
there will be a stipulation as to the size at the time of planting. Ms. Maderios believes they will be
6 feet tall at the time of planting. Mr. Connors read the draft condition of approval that includes a
6-foot minimum height. Mr. Viano commented on Ms. Maderios’ concern about the plantings
growing together and stated that is the point of creating a landscape screen.

Mr. Viano asked if the board reviewed his offer to pay for additional plantings. Mr. Canada stated
the board cannot require that and instructed Mr. Viano to discuss that directly with the Applicant.

Mr. Zaremba made a motion to close the public hearing. Mr. Houghton seconded the motion.
All voted in favor and the motion was approved.

There was no further discussion by the board. Mr. Connors suggested some clerical changes to the
proposed conditions in the draft motion to address the most recent plan.

Mr. Zaremba made the following motion to approve the application.
I move that the Planning Board approve the Conditional Use Permit application submitted
by ReVision Energy (applicant) on behalf of Andrew and Eileen Maderios (owners), to
construct a small 12.48 kilowatt ground-mounted solar energy system at 190 Winnicutt
Road, (Tax Map 11, Lot 22), Zoned Residential Agricultural subject to the following
conditions:
1. The landscape plan shall be amended to address all of the following:

a.) A note shall be added to the plan that no existing landscaping will be removed or

cleared in order to construct the solar energy system.

Page 2 of 7



94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142

b.) A note shall be added to the plan that existing mature landscaping along Winnicutt
Road and along the property boundary with 188 Winnicutt Road will not be removed or
cleared so long as the solar array is located on the property. Existing landscaping may be
pruned or otherwise maintained to assure its health.
c.) The landscape plan shall be revised to insure that the plantings are planted at a
minimum height of six feet.

2. The landscape plan shall be transposed into a plan form that is acceptable for Planning
Board signature.

3. A note shall be added to the plan that the solar arrays will not exceed a height of 11.5-
feet.

4. A note shall be added to the plan that all electrical connections to the solar energy system
will be provided underground.

5. A note shall be added to the plan that any change in location or expansion of the Solar
Energy System will require re-approval by the Planning Board.

6. Any changes to the plantings from the plan will be submitted to the Town Planner for
approval.

The Board reviewed the Conditional Use Permit Criteria prior to seconding the motion:

1. Spirit and Intent of the Ordinance: The Board agrees with the application statements with
regards to conserving and protecting the value of property and land use and following current
building, fire, electrical and safety codes.

2. Conformity to Zoning Ordinance: The Planning Staff and Board are not aware of any violations.
3. Site Suitability: The Board agreed that the site suitability criteria either do not apply to this
project (e.g. vehicular/pedestrian access and adequate public services) or are met (e.g. absence of
environmental constraints and availability of utilities).

4. External Impacts on Abutting Properties and the Surrounding Environment: The Board notes
that any external impacts have been mitigated by the landscaping plan. The panels create no glare
as they are manufactured to absorb sunlight.

5. Character of the Site Development: The Board agrees that the landscape plan is sufficient to
buffer adjacent properties.

6. Character of the buildings and structures: There are other examples of solar arrays in residential
neighborhoods in Stratham.

7. Preservation of natural, cultural, historic and scenic resources: The project is located outside of
any of the stated resource buffers.

8. Impact on property values: The Board agrees with the Applicant’s statement that there are no
studies that conclude solar diminishes property values and that published studies indicate that solar
may increase property value.

9. Availability of Public Services and Facilities: The Board agrees that public services are not
required for this project.

10. Fiscal Impacts: There are no negative fiscal impacts identified for the Town.

11. Public Interest: The reduction of fossil fuel use is within the public interest.

Mr. Houghton noted that the abutter at 1 Charles Drive submitted comments that they do not

believe the plantings are sufficient to mitigate the visual impact to their property and the abutter

asked that the application be declined based on the zoning ordinance. Relative to the Conditional

Use Permit Criteria, Mr. Houghton believes the Applicant has demonstrated a degree of hardship

in placing the panels on their property consistent with the exacting intent of the ordinance and the

Applicant has done an acceptable job of putting forth a plan to mitigate the impact of the not
Page 3 of 7



143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191

complete conformance with the ordinance. Mr. Canada notes that the comments were submitted
before the landscape plan was amended.

Mr. Kunowski seconded the motion. All voted in favor and the motion was approved.

Mr. Canada turned the meeting over to Mr. House at 7:34 pm.

4. New Business - Public Hearing:

a. Jay and Celeste Ward (Owners) - Request for approval of a conditional use permit to allow the

installation of a small-scale ground mounted solar array at 10 Boat Club Drive (Tax Map 12, Lot
2), Zoned Residential Agricultural. Owner/Applicant’s representative is Harmony Energy Works,
10 Gale Road, Hampton, NH 03842.

Mr. Connors presented the project. Planning staff questioned the location of the proposed solar
array with respect to its proximity to the Shoreland Protection District (SPD). The location was
subsequently moved to insure that it will located outside the SPD. Mr. Connors noted that the staff
memo in the Planning Board packet does not reflect the information submitted today by the
Applicant and directs the Boards’ attention to the new information.

George Horrocks from Harmony Energy Works spoke on behalf of the Applicant. Mr. Horrocks
stated the proposed array location was moved east to meet the SPD requirements and added that
the nearest house is over 300 feet from the closest point of the array. Jay Arslanian of Harmony
Energy Works added that the existing vegetation on the Applicant’s property and the neighbor’s
property will provide screening of the array from the neighbor’s home.

Mr. House asked what kind of vegetation is between the proposed array and the neighbor. Mr.
Horrocks responded that it is a dense forest. The array is 20 feet high at its peak in the winter when
the panels are at a 45 degree angle and about 15 feet high in the summer when the panels are at a
25 to 35 degree angle. Mr. Horrocks does not foresee that the nearest neighbor will be able to see
the array.

Mr. Kunowski asked if the parcel would be able to be subdivided in the future to create a buildable
lot and thereby eliminating the forest. Mr. Connors stated there is not sufficient frontage to
subdivide.

Mr. House asked for confirmation on which plan is most current with respect to the proposed
location. The most current plan is the one plan submitted to the board as a hard copy and not in
their packet.

Mr. Zaremba asked if updated plans are submitted to abutters. Mr. Connors responded that no
plans are sent to abutters, just notification of the meeting and they can contact the Planning Office
for application materials.

Mr. Canada noted that the proposed location looks shaded. Mr. Horrocks replied that the dotted

white line on the plan around the array indicates the extent of tree trimming and removal to prevent

shading. Gauges are used to measure shading and the extent of clearing is typically 50 feet on the

sides and 150 feet to the south. Mr. House stated the plan does not specifically indicate the extent

of clearing and asked if all clearing will stop at the dotted line. Mr. Horrocks confirmed. Mr. House
Page 4 of 7



192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240

asked if there are any trees in the southwest corner near the array that cannot be touched as they
may be within the SPD. Mr. Horrocks responded not to their knowledge. Mr. Arslanian added that
the location insures that even when the panels swing, they will not extend into the SPD.

Mr. House asked if the board feels that the application is complete. The board determined that the
application is complete but they need time to review the updated application and plan.

Mr. Houghton made a motion to continue the meeting to the next meeting to provide the
Board the opportunity to review the completed application. Mr. Zaremba seconded the
motion. All voted in favor and the motion was approved.

Mr. Horrocks asked for clarification if any cutting is allowed in the SPD. Mr. Canada responded
that there are State standards with regards to cutting in the SPD that the Applicant should review.
Mr. Connors added within 75 feet cutting cannot take place, but he would need to review the entire
ordinance to give a complete answer. Mr. Connors added that the Applicant should include on the
plan any proposed tree cutting in the SPD. Mr. Horrocks responded that no cutting is proposed by
Harmony Energy Works but that he is asking on behalf of the property owner. Mr. Canada stated
that a timber cutting permit might be required from the Select Board.

Mr. Connors suggested that the Board open the public hearing to hear any abutters’ comments.

Mr. Houghton made a motion to open the public hearing. Mr. Kunowski seconded the
motion. All voted in favor and the motion was approved.

Jay Ward, the Applicant, stated that he has emailed the three abutters regarding his application.
The owners of 8 and 9 Boat Club Drive responded in favor of the project and stated that they have
no issue with the panels or the cutting of trees to support the solar panels. The remaining abutter,
Squamscott Scullers, is very far removed from visibility of the panels. Mr. House stated it would
be nice if those responses could be submitted to the Town as part of the file.

Mr. Houghton made a motion to close the public hearing. Mr. Zaremba seconded the motion.
All voted in favor and the motion was approved.

5. Other Business:

a. Proposed 2023 Zoning Amendment Workshop:

1. Professional/Residential setbacks and discussion

Mr. Connors presented the topic. At the last Planning Board meeting, Mr. Connors presented a
letter from Mr. Delisle, owner of 100 Portsmouth Avenue, asking the Board to relax the front
property line setback in the Professional/Residential District. The Board questioned the impacts
across the District which Mr. Connors researched. The District is relatively small and there are
very few properties, and not many residential properties, that would be affected. The District is
mostly mixed-use. There are six properties that would benefit from the zoning change: 81
Portsmouth Avenue, 2 Raeder Drive, 2 Millbrook Drive, 7 Emery Lane, 118 Portsmouth Avenue,
and 140 Portsmouth Avenue.

Mr. Canada asked if there would be any detriment to abutters of those six properties. There were
Page 5 of 7



241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289

no issues stated. Mr. Kunowski asked if Mr. Delisle’s request is for a permanent amendment to the
existing setback rules that would apply permanently going forward for every property in the district
vs. a one-time variance just for their property. Mr. Connors confirmed and clarified that the
requirement only applies to properties that are across the street from a residential use and being a
small district, there are only six properties that would be affected. Mr. Connors added that there
does not appear to be a significant impact to a permanent change. Being a small district, the town
could mail a letter to all the property owners in the District that the Board is considering this
change. Mr. Kunowski stated that the change could encourage positive development on the
properties identified.

Mr. House asked if the NH DOT sidewalk project includes this area of Portsmouth Avenue. Mr.
Connors replied that project is basically from Bunker Hill Avenue to the town line with Exeter, so
it would not.

Mr. House summarized that there is a consensus among the Board members that there is no issue
with a 20-foot front setback and stated the administrative process to move this forward.

2. Sign ordinance amendments

Mr. Connors presented changes to the existing regulations that include 1) increasing restrictions
on signage for properties with frontage on two streets; 2) increasing to 600 feet from 300 feet the
allowable frontage for two free-standing signs, increasing the distance between the signs and
limiting the total size and height; 3) requiring a building permit for all directional signs and add
size, location, and illumination restrictions on directional signs; 4) miscellaneous reductions on
maximum sign area and height in certain districts; and 5) restrictions on internally illuminated
signs in the Gateway and Industrial Districts.

The Board discussed all proposed changes and made suggestions. Mr. Connors suggested a
compromise that the Town could make the ordinance stricter, but instead of requiring a variance
from the ZBA, the Town could allow an Applicant to apply for a Conditional Use Permit from the
Planning Board. Mr. Kunowski commented that if the Town is trying to adhere to a standard, then
the ZBA 1is the better path. Mr. Canada would like the flexibility of a CUP from the Planning
Board. Mr. Zaremba is open to limited flexibility and is concerned with a CUP becoming the norm.
Mr. Connors suggested the Town could limit the sign exceedance request that can be submitted
through a CUP application and anything greater would require ZBA approval. Mr. House asked if
there have been any issues with the current language other than the area and height. Mr. Connors
replied that the Town is quite generous in what is allowed so it is rare that ZBA approval is needed,
however, the proposed ordinance changes would be stricter which could lead to more requests for
a variance or conditional use approval. The board discussed and decided to keep the ZBA process
in a 3:2 straw poll

3. Gateway District driveway and sidewalk standards

Mr. Connors presented the topic. The Regional Planning Commission (RPC) is seeking cost
estimates for the Gateway District sidewalk and driveway improvements project that the Town is
trying to get into the NH DOT 10-year plan. RPC asked for the Town to provide more details on
the project. Mr. Connors presented maps showing existing and proposed sidewalks along the
Gateway District. The Board agreed with Mr. Connors’ proposals.

Page 6 of 7



290 b. Mr. Canada made a motion to enter non-public session for the purposes of considering

291 legal advice at 9:21 pm, permitted under NH RSA 91-A:3, for the purposes of considering
292 legal advice provided by legal counsel. Mr. Zaremba seconded the motion. All voted in

293 favor.

294

295 Mr. Canada made a motion to re-enter the public meeting at 9:31 pm. Mr. Zaremba seconded the
296 motion. All voted in favor.

297

298 Mr. House asked if there were any other items the Board wished to discuss. Hearing none, he asked
299 if there was a motion to adjourn.

300

301 6. Adjournment:

302

303 Mr. Zaremba made a motion to adjourn at 9:32 pm. Mr. Hougton seconded the motion. All voted in
304 favor and the meeting adjourned.

Page 7 of 7



